Date: 29 June 2021

Town Hall, Penrith, Cumbria CA11 7QF
Tel: 01768 817817
Email: cttee.admin@eden.gov.uk

Dear Sir/Madam

Accounts and Governance Committee Agenda - 7 July 2021
Notice is hereby given that a meeting of the Accounts and Governance Committee will be
held at 6.45 pm on Wednesday, 7 July 2021 at The Sports Hall, Penrith Leisure Centre,
Penrith CA11 8JH.
Please note: if you would like to attend this meeting you will need to book in
advance. This is necessary due to Covid restrictions on the number who can attend.
Please contact Democratic Services; the details are below*

1

Appointment of Vice-Chairman
To receive nominations for and appoint a Vice-Chairman of the Accounts and
Governance Committee.

2

Apologies for Absence

3

Minutes of Previous Meeting
To note minutes AGc/37/04/21 to AGc/45/04/21 of the meeting of this Committee
held on 15 April 2021 previously circulated and confirmed and signed at Annual
Council on 27 May 2021.

4

Declarations of Interest
To receive declarations of the existence and nature of any private interests, both
disclosable pecuniary and any other registrable interests, in any matter to be
considered or being considered.

5

Alston Moor Parish Council
To consider the Assistant Director Legal and Democratic Services’ report G23/21(to
follow) on the findings of an independent assessment of various complaints and
associated correspondence concerning members of Alston Moor Parish Council.

www.eden.gov.uk

J Gooding
Interim Chief Executive

6

External Audit Update (Pages 5 - 24)
To consider the Interim Director of Resources’ report F22/21 which

provides an update from the External Auditor on the Statement of Accounts Audit for
both 19/20 and 20/21.
RECOMMENDED that the update from the External Auditor on the scope and
additional work for the audit 2020/21 be noted.

7

Audit Scope and Additional Work 2020/21 (Pages 25 - 32)
To consider The Interim Director of Resources’ report F23/21 which provides an
update from the External Auditor on the Statement of Accounts Audit for both 19/20
and 20/21.
RECOMMENDED that the update from the External Auditor on the Statement of
Accounts Audit for both 19/20 and 20/21 be noted.

8

Internal Audit Annual Report 2020/21 (Pages 33 - 40)
To consider the Interim Director of Resources’ report F25/21 which presents the
Audit Annual Report for 2020/21.
RECOMMENDATION that the report and the Annual Report 2020/21 from TIAA
attached at Appendix 1 be noted.

9

Internal Audit - Summary Internal Controls Assurance Report 2021/22
(Pages 41 - 48)
To consider the Interim Director of Resources report F26/21 which presents the
Summary Internal Controls Assurance Report 2021/22.

10

Work Programme (Pages 49 - 52)
To consider the Interim Director of Resources’ report F24/21 which sets out the work
programme for the Accounts and Governance Committee.
RECOMMENDED that the Accounts and Governance Committee approve the Work
Programme as set out at Appendix 1 to the report.

11

Any Other Items Which the Chairman Decides are Urgent

12

Date of Next Scheduled Meeting
The next scheduled meeting of this Committee is Thursday 9 September 2021.

www.eden.gov.uk

2

Yours faithfully

J Gooding
Interim Chief Executive
*Democratic Services Contact: Email: cttee.admin@eden.gov.uk
or telephone: 01768 212266

Encs
For Attention
All members of the Council
Chairman – Councillor M Eyles (Liberal Democrat Group)
Councillors
R Briggs, Conservative Group
A Connell, Liberal Democrat Group
K Greenwood, Independent Alliance Group
S Lancaster, Independent Group

Standing Deputies
P G Baker, Liberal Democrat Group
M Clark, Independent Group
L Harker, Liberal Democrat Group
H Fearon, Conservative Group
A Meadowcroft, Conservative Group

J C Lynch, Conservative Group
N McCall, Liberal Democrat Group
G Nicolson OBE, Conservative Group
D Wicks, Conservative Group

W Patterson, Independent Alliance Group
D Ryland, Independent Group
H Sawrey-Cookson, Independent Group
A Todd, Conservative Group

Please Note: Under the Openness of Local Government Bodies Regulations 2014
this meeting has been advertised as a public meeting (unless stated otherwise) and
as such could be filmed or recorded by the media or members of the public

www.eden.gov.uk

3

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 6

Report No: F22/21
Eden District Council
Accounts and Governance Committee
7 July 2021

External Audit Update
Report from:

Interim Director of Resources

Wards:

All Wards
OPEN PUBLIC ITEM

1

Purpose

1.1

To provide an update from the External Auditor on the Statement of Accounts
Audit for both 19/20 and 20/21.

2

Recommendation

2.1

It is recommended that the Accounts and Governance Committee note the
report.

3

Report Details

3.1

As members will be aware the closedown for 19/20 has suffered significant
delays caused principally by issues related to historical asset valuations.

3.2

The Interim Director of Resources and External Auditors continue to work
together to finalise the 19/20 accounts and will meet ahead of the meeting to
consider an achievable date, which will be discussed at the Committee.

3.3

The attached at Appendix 1 sets out a progress report from the External
Auditors for the 20/21 audit.

4

Policy Framework

4.1

The Council has four corporate priorities which are:





Sustainable;
Healthy, safe and secure;
Connected; and
Creative

4.2

This report meets sustainable and healthy, safe and secure corporate
priorities.

5

Consultation

5.1

No consultation has taken place.

6

Implications

6.1

Financial and Resources

6.1.1 Any decision to reduce or increase resources or alternatively increase income
must be made within the context of the Council’s stated priorities, as set out in
its Council Plan 2019-2023 as agreed at Council on 7 November 2019.

Page 5

6.1.2 There are no proposals in this report that would reduce or increase resources.
6.2

Legal

6.2.1 There are no legal implications arising from this report.
6.3

Human Resources

6.3.1 There are no Human Resources implications arising from this report.
6.4

6.5

Statutory Considerations
Consideration:

Details of any implications and proposed
measures to address:

Equality and Diversity

None arising from this report.

Health, Social
Environmental and
Economic Impact

None arising from this report.

Crime and Disorder

None arising from this report.

Children and
Safeguarding

None arising from this report.

Risk Management
Risk

Consequence

Controls Required

Reputational risk to
Council – oversight of
the Council’s audit and
governance procedures
is a vital part of
transparent
governance.

Public confidence could
be undermined if due
consideration has not
been given.

Regular updates to
Accounts and
Governance
Committee of what
items they can expect
to consider.

7

Other Options Considered

7.1

No other options were considered

8

Reasons for the Decision/Recommendation

8.1

The report is for the Committee to note progress.

Background Papers:

None

Appendices:

Appendix 1 – Audit Progress Report and Sector
Update

Contact Officer:

Paul Sutton, Interim Director of Resources

Page 6

Appendix 1

Page 7

Public

Page 8

Public

•
•

Page 9

Public

Page 10
•
•
•
•
•

•

•
•
•

Public

Page 11

Public

Page 12

Public

•

•
•
•

Page 13

Public

Page 14
•

•
.

•

•

•

•

•
•
•

•

Public

•
•
•

More
meaningful
and timely
reporting

Maximising
the value
from
auditor’s
work

•

More
freedom to
reflect local
context

Page 15

VFM arrangements commentary and recommendations

Public

Page 16

Public

•
•

•

•
•

•
•

•
•
•
•

•
•

Page 17

•

•
•

Public

Page 18

•
•

•
•

•

•
•

•

Public

•
•
•

Page 19

Public

Page 20

Public

•
•
•
•
•
•

Page 21

Public

Page 22

Public

Page 23

Page 24

Agenda Item 7

Report No: F23/21
Eden District Council
Accounts and Governance Committee
7 July 2021

Audit Scope and Additional Work 2020/21
Report from:

Interim Director of Resources

Wards:

All Wards
OPEN PUBLIC ITEM

1

Purpose

1.1

To provide an update from the External Auditor on the scope and additional
work for the audit 2020/21.

2

Recommendation

2.1

It is recommended that the Accounts and Governance Committee note the
report.

3

Report Details

3.1

The Councils external auditors Grant Thornton have provided an update on
the scope of the audit and additional work required for the 2020/21 closedown
audit, which is attached at Appendix 1.

3.2

Whilst, the additional work will result in an increase in budget of £23,900, it in
my opinion as Section 151 officer, provides a level of resources much more in
line with that required to undertake the task.

3.3

The work of the external auditors provides assurance to myself as Section
151 officer and to this Committee as “those charged with governance” and it is
critical that they have adequate resources to provide the assurance needed.

4

Policy Framework

4.1

The Council has four corporate priorities which are:





Sustainable;
Healthy, safe and secure;
Connected; and
Creative

4.2

This report meets sustainable and healthy, safe and secure corporate
priorities.

5

Consultation

5.1

No consultation has taken place.

Page 25

6

Implications

6.1

Financial and Resources

6.1.1 Any decision to reduce or increase resources or alternatively increase income
must be made within the context of the Council’s stated priorities, as set out in
its Council Plan 2019-2023 as agreed at Council on 7 November 2019.
6.1.2 The proposals will result in an increase in the budget for the external audit for
2020/21, which will be addressed through the update of the Medium Term
Financial Plan in September 2021.
6.2

Legal

6.2.1 There are no legal implications arising from this report.
6.3

Human Resources

6.3.1 There are no human resources implications arising from this report.
6.4

6.5

Statutory Considerations
Consideration:

Details of any implications and proposed
measures to address:

Equality and Diversity

None arising from this report.

Health, Social
Environmental and
Economic Impact

None arising from this report.

Crime and Disorder

None arising from this report.

Children and
Safeguarding

None arising from this report.

Risk Management
Risk

Consequence

Controls Required

Reputational risk to
Council – oversight of
the Council’s audit and
governance procedures
is a vital part of
transparent
governance.

Public confidence could
be undermined if due
consideration has not
been given.

Regular updates to
Accounts and
Governance
Committee of what
items they can expect
to consider.

7

Other Options Considered

7.1

No other options were considered

8

Reasons for the Decision/Recommendation

8.1

The report is for the Committee to note progress.

Background Papers:

None

Appendices:

Appendix 1 – Audit Scope & Additional Work 20/21

Contact Officer:

Paul Sutton, Interim Director of Resources

Page 26

Appendix 1
Commercial in confidence

Grant Thornton UK LLP

Paul Sutton
Director of Finance (S151 Officer)
Eden District Council
By email

31 March 2021

Dear Paul
Audit Scope and additional work 2020/21

Introduction
As you are aware, local audit has gone through major changes in the last couple of years.
More and more councils are getting involved in complex and innovatory financial
arrangements, increased regulatory pressures, the expectations of stakeholders and
enhancements to Codes and Standards have fundamentally changed the landscape in which
we work. COVID - 19 and lockdown have added further unanticipated pressures on both
auditors and audited bodies. In this letter, I set out my expectations of the increased audit
work which will be required in 2020/21. I also set out the expected fee impact, the need for
which has recently been acknowledged by both the Redmond Review and MHCLG’s
subsequent response. I hope this is helpful in setting out the context in which we will work with
you, as well as a sign of Grant Thornton’s continued commitment to the highest audit quality.

Looking back to 2019/20
In February 2020, I wrote to you regarding the increased regulatory focus facing all audit
suppliers and the impact this would have on the scope of our work for 2019/20 and beyond. I
referred to this as ‘raising the bar’, reflecting the expectation from the FRC that all audit work
should now be of level 2a (limited improvement only) or better. I set out my expectation that
there would be an additional fee requirement for the 2019/20 audit, compared to the scale fee
published by PSAA, of £10,000 (an increase of 31%). This was reflected in our Audit Plan
dated April 2020.
The subsequent COVID 19 pandemic and the issues encountered had a further significant
impact on the cost of us as auditors discharging our responsibilities. We have not yet
concluded the audit for 2019/20. On the basis of our work to date, I am no table to give an
accurate estimation of the fee.
The main reasons for the further variation are as follows:
-

The disruption caused by COVID - 19, impacting both on your closedown procedures
and our ability to audit remotely; as well as the additional audit considerations

Chartered Accountants. Grant Thornton UK LLP is a limited liability partnership registered in England and Wales: No.OC307742.
Registered office: 30 Finsbury Square, London EC2A 1AG. A list of members is available from our registered office. Grant Thornton
UK LLP is authorised and regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority. Grant Thornton UK LLP is a member firm of Grant Thornton
International Ltd (GTIL). GTIL and the member firms are not a worldwide partnership. Services are delivered by the member firms.
GTIL and its member firms are not agents of, and do not obligate, one another and are not liable for one another’s acts or omissions.
Please see grantthornton.co.uk for further details.

grantthornton.co.uk

Page 27

Commercial in confidence

-

including in respect of asset valuations. These meant that like you, we incurred
considerable extra costs. Across all firms, only 45% of local government audits were
signed off by the target date of 30 November, which indicates the scale of the
challenge involved.
The Council not having the capacity to response to our audit queries on a timely basis
due to other competing commitments.

In the sections below, I set out the main factors which will impact on the audit fee for 2020/21.
These include the introduction of the new NAO Code of Audit Practice, with consequent
implications for Value for Money work; the revision to major auditing standards, including
those covering estimates and fraud, and the update of Practice Note 10 (the adaptation of
auditing standards to public sector audits).
Following the national lockdown in January 2021, COVID - 19 will also continue to impact in a
large way on the audit, and I have also commented on this below. We also note that the
Government response to the Redmond Review, published on 17 December 2020 promised
that MHCLG will provide relevant local authorities with £15 million in additional funding in
2021/22 to be used to support the additional costs of reporting and audit anticipated related to
the 2020/21 financial year.
New audit requirements for 2020/21 – the new NAO Code
On 1 April 2020, the National Audit Office introduced a new Code of Audit Practice which
comes into effect from audit year 2020/21. The most significant change in the Code is the
introduction of a new ‘Auditor’s Annual Report’, which brings together the results of all the
auditor’s work across the year. The Code also introduced a revised approach to the audit of
Value for Money. These changes are set out in more detailed in the NAO’s Auditor Guidance
Note 03 which was published in October 2020.
We plan to issue our Audit Plan for 2020/21 in July 2021. I have set out below the main
changes in respect of Value for Money, and the implications for the timing and resourcing of
our work, as well as for the audit fee.
There are three main changes arising from the NAO’s new approach.
•
•
•

A new set of key criteria, covering governance, financial sustainability and
improvements in economy, efficiency and effectiveness
More extensive reporting, with a requirement on the auditor to produce a commentary
on arrangements across all of the key criteria, rather than the current ‘reporting by
exception’ approach
The replacement of the binary (qualified / unqualified) approach to VfM conclusions,
with far more sophisticated judgements on performance, as well as recommendations
on any significant weaknesses in arrangements identified during the audit.

Grant Thornton very much welcomes the changes, which will support auditors in undertaking
and reporting on work which is more meaningful and makes impact with audited bodies and
the public. We agree with the move away from a binary conclusion, and with the replacement
of the Annual Audit Letter with the new Annual Auditor’s Report. The changes will help pave
the way for a new relationship between auditors and audited bodies which is based around
constructive challenge and a drive for improvement.
The following are the main implications in terms of audit delivery:
•

Page 28

We are aiming to publish our work on the Auditor’s Annual Report at the same time as
the Auditor’s Report on the Financial Statements. To ensure we are able to complete
the necessary work by the due date, we propose to undertake our initial planning in
August 2021 and to share the results of our risk assessment with you by 15
September 2021. We will aim to complete the fieldwork by 15 October 2021. We will
allow sufficient time for you to comment on our risk assessment and audit findings at
each key stage before we present the results to Audit Committee.

Grant Thornton UK LLP.

2

Commercial in confidence

•

Where auditors identify weaknesses in Value for Money arrangements, there will be
increased reporting requirements on the audit team. We envisage that across the
country, auditors will be identifying more significant weaknesses and consequently
making an increased number of recommendations (in place of what was a qualified
Value for Money conclusion). We will be working closely with the NAO and the other
audit firms to ensure consistency of application of the new guidance.

•

The new approach will also potentially be more challenging, as well as rewarding, for
audited bodies involving discussions at a wider and more strategic level. Both the
reporting, and the planning and risk assessment which underpins it, will require more
audit time, delivered through a richer skill mix than in previous years. Our estimate is
that for your audit, this will result in an increased fee of £9,000 (38% of the overall
increase on fees) for 2020/21. This is in line with increases we are proposing at all our
local audits.

•

PSAA recognise that the additional work required as a result of the new Code will
continue in future years and are consulting on how best to reflect this in any revision
to scale fees with effect from 2021/22. For 2020/21 the fee variation will be approved
by PSAA via the fee variations process in the usual manner.

•

There will be increased documentation and reporting requirements on the audit team.
The value for money work will now cover a much wider scope, as set out above. Each
year we will need to assess the arrangements in place across these areas and
explore the arrangements in more detail than previously. We envisage that across the
country, auditors will be identifying more significant risk areas and will be reporting
more extensively than in previous years. The financial and governance aspects of the
COVID - 19 pandemic are likely to feature heavily in our work.

Enhanced auditing standards for 2020/21: ISA 540 - Estimates
In the period December 2018 to January 2020 the Financial Reporting Council issued a
number of updated International Auditing Standards (ISAs (UK)) which are effective for audits
of financial statements for periods beginning on or after 15 December 2019. The single most
significant of these for this year’s audit is ISA (UK) 540 (revised): Auditing Accounting
Estimates and Related Disclosures which includes a number of enhancements in respect of
the audit risk assessment process for accounting estimates.
In summary, the revised Standard reflects increasing focus from regulators and other
stakeholders on all key estimates, especially those which are complex, require significant
judgements. ISA 540 has been enhanced to place increasing demands on auditors to
understand and assess an entity’s internal controls over accounting estimates.
In practice, you will see an increased focus during our audit on key internal controls including:
•
•
•
•

How management identifies the need for and applies specialised skills
The information system as relates to estimates
How management reviews the outcomes of previous accounting estimates
The role of those charged with governance: to what extent does the Audit Committee
understand and oversee the estimation process?

We will also look for you to articulate clearly:
•
•

How management understands the degree of estimation uncertainty related to each
accounting estimate; and
How management address this estimation uncertainty when selecting their point
estimate.

The following are examples of where this could apply:

Page 293

Grant Thornton UK LLP.

Commercial in confidence

•
•
•
•
•
•

Valuations of land and buildings, council dwellings and investment properties
Depreciation
Year-end provisions and accruals
Credit loss and impairment allowances
Valuation of defined benefit net pension fund liabilities
Fair value estimates

As the audit progresses, we will discuss the practical ways in which you can support us in
meeting our obligations through the audit.

Enhanced auditing standards for 2020/21: ISA 240 - Risks in respect of fraud
The auditor’s responsibilities in relation to fraud in an audit of the financial statements are set
out in ISA 240. This was most recently updated in January 2020, with effect for audit year
2020/21. Note that the FRC is currently consulting on further enhancements to the Standard,
reflecting concerns expressed amongst others by Sir Donald Brydon that that auditors are not
doing enough work to detect material fraud.
In response to the new Standard, and to the increased expectations of regulators, we are
heightening our focus on fraud risks. The following are examples of where this could apply:
•
•
•
•
•
•

Increased scope and coverage of journals testing
Increased cut off testing
Increased testing of income and expenditure
Automated/data interrogation techniques
Keeping materiality under review throughout the audit.
More robust reporting (including the use of Statutory Recommendations where
appropriate).

As with estimates, our work in this area may look and feel different to you, and you will notice
an increased audit presence. We will discuss emerging findings with you, and ensure you
have an early opportunity to comment on findings.
Revised ISA (UK) 700 Forming an opinion and reporting on financial statements
(Updated January 2020):
This revised Standard is effective for engagements relating to financial periods commencing
on or after 15 December 2019. The key change is that all auditor’s reports will be required to
include an explanation as to what extent the audit was considered capable of detecting
irregularities including fraud. This explanation may include:
•
•
•
•
•
•

Page 30

how the engagement team obtained an understanding of the legal and regulatory
framework applicable to the entity and how the entity is complying with that
framework
which laws and regulations the engagement team identified as being of significance in
the context of the entity
the engagement team’s assessment of the susceptibility of the entity’s financial
statements to material misstatement, including how fraud might occur
the engagement partner’s assessment of whether the engagement team collectively
had the appropriate competence and capabilities to identify or recognize noncompliance with laws and regulations
the engagement team’s understanding of the entity’s current activities, the scope of its
authorization and the effectiveness of its control environment where the entity is a
regulated entity
in the case of a group audit, how the engagement team addressed these matters at
both at the group and component levels and relevant communications with
component auditors.

Grant Thornton UK LLP.

4

Commercial in confidence

Practice Note 10 (PN 10): The application of auditing standards for public sector audits
Reflecting the differences between public sector and commercial audits, Practice Note 10
provides guidance for auditors on the application to relevant standards in the public sector. An
updated version of PN 10 was published in November 2020. This updated version reinforces
the enhancements described above in respect of estimates and risk of fraud.
In addition, there is one other major change in PN 10 and this is in respect of the auditor’s
responsibilities in respect of going concern. As auditors, we are required to obtain sufficient
appropriate audit evidence regarding, and conclude on:
• whether a material uncertainty related to going concern exists; and
• the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting in
the preparation of the financial statements.
The revisions to PN 10 are helpful in that they allow auditors to apply a ‘continued provision of
service approach’ to auditing going concern where appropriate. Applying such an approach
enables auditors to change focus somewhat. Whilst we will still undertake relevant work in
respect of management’s disclosure around going concern, the concept of the ‘material
uncertainty’ disclosure is far less likely to apply. The NAO’s guidance to auditors makes clear
that auditor’s focus should instead be based on the financial resilience of the authority. As
such, there is no reduction in respect of work on going concern and financial resilience, but
rather a shift in emphasis.
Other revised Auditing Standards
In November 2019, the FRC issued an update to ISA 220, covering Quality Control of
Financial Statements. This revised standard highlights the increased importance for the
engagement lead auditor in planning, supervising and reviewing the work of the local audit
team.
Impact of COVID - 19
As last year, we expect that our detailed work programme will need to take account of a
number of risks arising from COVID - 19 related issues, including lockdown. These include
potential uncertainties around the valuation of property and pension liabilities, as well as the
accounting for government income received in respect of COVID - 19 pressures. Whilst
lockdown continues, there are also complications arising from the remote preparation of
accounts and working papers, as well as challenges for us in providing support for our junior
team members working remotely. Please note, the proposed fees for 2020/21 set out in the
letter do not include any additional fees to reflect potential additional work necessary in
2020/21 due to Covid-19. We continue to monitor developments in this area and will update
you accordingly as clarity emerges on its impact in the current year.

Overall impact
MHCLG has acknowledged, via their response to Redmond, that audit fees need to increase
due to the additional work being undertaken by auditors and the pressure on the audit market.
Funding of £15m is being provided to local government to cover these additional costs in
2020/21.
Our estimate is that, for your audit, this will result in an overall fee of £56,196. This is in line
with increases we are proposing at all our local audits. I set out below the core strategic
constituents of this fee.

Total (£)

Page 315

Grant Thornton UK LLP.

Commercial in confidence

Scale fee published by PSAA

32,296

Plus:
Ongoing increases to scale first
identified in 2019/20
Raising the bar/ regulatory factors

3,600

PPE

3,200

Pensions

1,600

New issues for 2020/21
Increase in respect of additional work
on Value for Money under new NAO
Code

9,000

Impact of new auditing standards

6,500

Sub total

23,900

Local risk factors (e.g. complex new
accounting issues / evident reductions
in quality of accounts prep/ financial
standing issues)

nil

Increase to scale

23,900

Fee proposed for 2020/21

56,196

All variations to the scale fee will need to be approved by PSAA.

Next steps
I hope this is helpful in explaining how the audit world is changing, as well as the practical
implications in terms of the Audit Plan, and the benefits to audited bodies from an even more
rigorous and robust audit. I look forward to discussing this in more detail at our next meeting.
If you have any questions in the meantime, please don’t hesitate to contact me.

Yours sincerely

Gareth Kelly

Engagement Lead, Public Sector Assurance
For and on behalf of Grant Thornton UK LLP

Page 32

Grant Thornton UK LLP.

6

Agenda Item 8
Report No: F25/21
Eden District Council
Accounts and Governance Committee
7 July 2021

Internal Audit – Annual Report 2020/21
Portfolio:

None

Report from:

Interim Director of Resources

Wards:

All Wards
OPEN PUBLIC ITEM

1

Purpose

1.1

To present the Internal Audit Annual Report for 2020/21.

2

Recommendation

2.1

Note the report and Annual Report 2020/21 from TIAA attached at Appendix 1.

3

Report Details

3.1

The Council’s Audit Service has since July 2020 been wholly operated by TIAA. Prior
to this the function was split partly through an internal senior auditor.

3.2

The report attached at Appendix 1 sets out the Annual Report for 2020/21. This
summarises the work undertaken by TIAA and sets out the assurance given on that
work completed.

3.3

The overall opinion from TIAA is that the Council “has reasonable and effective risk
management, control and governance processes in place.”

3.4

Whilst, the overall assurance level is acceptable we need to ensure that audit
recommendations are completed to ensure assurance levels are maintained or
improved

4

Policy Framework

4.1

The Council has four corporate priorities which are:


Sustainable;



Healthy, Safe and Secure;



Connected; and



Creative.

4.2

This report meets the Quality Council corporate priority.

5

Consultation

5.1

There has been no consultation with Ward Councillors or Portfolio Holders.

6

Implications

6.1

Financial and Resources

6.1.1 Any decision to reduce or increase resources or alternatively increase income must be
made within the context of the Council’s stated priorities, as set out in its Council Plan
2019-2023 as agreed at Council on 7 November 2019.
1

Page 33

6.1.2 There are no financial or resources implications.
6.2

Legal

6.2

There are no Legal implications.

6.3

Human Resources

6.3

There are no Human Resources implications.

6.4

Statutory Considerations

6.5

Consideration:

Details of any implications
and proposed measures to
address:

Equality and Diversity

There are no implications

Health, Social Environmental and Economic Impact

There are no implications

Crime and Disorder

There are no implications

Children and Safeguarding

There are no implications

Risk Management
Risk

Consequence

Controls Required

Issues raised by Internal
Audit are not appropriately
actioned by management

Weak systems control,
increased risk of theft and
fraud.

Reporting of internal audit
recommendations publicly
to Committee and tracking
implementation of these.

Audit programme slippage

Approved programme not
delivered, resources not
directed as planned and
reported.

Regular reporting on
internal audit progress.

7

Other Options Considered

7.1

No other options have been considered.

8

Reasons for the Decision/Recommendation

8.1

To keep Members updated on the progress with closedown and the external audit
plan.

Background Papers: None
Appendices:

Appendix 1 – Summary Progress Report 2020/21

Contact Officer:

Paul Sutton, Interim Director of Resources

Page 34

2

Internal Audit
FINAL

Eden District Council
Internal Audit Annual Report

2020/21

Page 35

June 2021

Page 36

Internal Audit Annual Report
Introduction
This is the 2020/21 Annual Report by TIAA on the internal control environment at Eden
District Council. The annual internal audit report summaries the outcomes of the reviews
we have carried out on the organisation’s framework of governance, risk management
and control. This report, which incorporates CIPFA guidance on the potential limitation of
scope brought about by the impact of COVID-19, is designed to assist the Council in
making its annual governance statement.

Limitations on our opinion arising from Covid-19
The impact of COVID-19 on all public sector services has been significant including changes
to ways of working, reprioritising services, redeploying staff and stretching capacity; the
impact has been present throughout the whole of 2020/21 in varying degrees.
For internal audit, it has raised the question of whether they have been able to undertake
sufficient internal audit work to gain assurance during 2020/21. This is a key consideration
to fulfil the requirement of the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS) for the Head
of Internal Audit (HIA) when issuing their annual opinion on the overall adequacy and
effectiveness of the organisation’s framework of governance, risk management and
control. This opinion is in turn one of the sources of assurance that the organisation relies
on for its Annual Governance Statement. Factors that need to be taken in to account in
reaching a conclusion include:


Has any reduction in coverage compared to what was planned resulted in
insufficient assurance work?



Have any limitations in the scope of individual assignments resulted in it only
being possible to place partial assurance on the outcome?



Have changes in ways of working led to gaps in the governance, risk management
and control arrangements?

TIAA understands the considerable challenges and the difficult decisions that
organisations are having to deal with, however, the professional and regulatory
expectations on public bodies to ensure that their internal audit arrangements conform
with PSIAS have not changed. In this difficult situation, heads of internal audit will need
to consider whether they can still issue the annual opinion or whether there will need to
be a limitation of scope.

A limitation of scope arises where the HIA is unable to draw on sufficient assurance to
issue a complete annual opinion in accordance with the professional standards. This is an
issue not only for the HIA but also for the leadership team and the audit committee who
normally rely on that opinion. It may also have wider consequences for stakeholder
assessments of the organisation.

What this means for Eden District Council
There has been minimal or no impact on the delivery of the internal audit work for
2020/21 as a result of the COVID-19 pandemic. There have been no changes to the
planned work as a result of COVID-19; any changes to the plan were based on purely on
business/operational need.
HEAD OF INTERNAL AUDIT’S ANNUAL OPINION
TIAA is satisfied that, for the areas reviewed during the year, Eden District Council
has reasonable and effective risk management, control and governance processes in
place.
This opinion is based solely on the matters that came to the attention of TIAA during
the course of the internal audit reviews carried out during the year and is not an
opinion on all elements of the risk management, control and governance processes
or the ongoing financial viability or your ability to meet financial obligations which
must be obtained by Eden District Council from its various sources of assurance.

Internal Audit Planned Coverage and Output
The 2020/21 Annual Audit Plan approved by the Accounts and Governance Committee
was for 160 days of internal audit coverage in the year.
During the year there were a number of changes to the annual plan, partly due to the
contract status of the Leisure and Waste contracts. Each of the deferred reviews has been
incorporated in to the 2021/22 Annual Plan. The reviews that were deferred are:


Cyber Security / Fraud Arrangements;



Property Management – Landlord Compliance Inc. Heart of Cumbria;



Leisure Management contract – Pre-Procurement Checks;



Recycling / Waste contract – Pre-Procurement Checks;



Recycling / Waste contract – Follow Up Review.
Eden District Council
Internal Audit Annual Report

Page 1

The planned work that has been carried out against the plan and the status of work not
completed is set out at Annex A.
No extra work was carried out which was in addition that set out in the Annual Audit Plan.

Assurance
TIAA carried out nine reviews, which were designed to ascertain the extent to which the
internal controls in the system are adequate to ensure that activities and procedures are
operating to achieve Eden District Council’s objectives. For each assurance review an
assessment of the combined effectiveness of the controls in mitigating the key control
risks was provided. Details of these are provided in Annex A and a summary is set out
below.

Audit Summary
Control weaknesses: There was one area reviewed by internal audit where it was
assessed that the effectiveness of some of the internal control arrangements provided
‘limited' or 'no assurance’. Recommendations were made to further strengthen the
control environment in these areas and the management responses indicated that the
recommendations had been accepted.
Recommendations Made: We have analysed our findings/recommendations by risk area
and these are summarised below.
Risk Area

Urgent

Important

Routine

Directed
Assurance Assessments

Number of Reviews

Previous Year

Substantial Assurance

2

3

Reasonable Assurance

6

2

Limited Assurance

1

0

No Assurance

0

0

Governance Framework

0

7

4

Risk Mitigation

0

1

0

Compliance

0

11

4

Delivery
Performance Monitoring

0

3

0

Financial Constraint

0

0

0

Resilience

0

2

0

The areas on which the assurance assessments have been provided can only provide
reasonable and not absolute assurance against misstatement or loss and their
effectiveness is reduced if the internal audit recommendations made during the year have
not been fully implemented.

Independence and Objectivity of Internal Audit

We made the following total number of recommendations on our audit work carried out
in 2020/21. The numbers in brackets relate to 2019/20 recommendations

There were no limitations or restrictions placed on the internal audit service which
impaired either the independence or objectivity of the service provided.

Urgent

Important

Routine

0 (0)

24 (12)

8 (13)

Page 37
Eden District Council
Internal Audit Annual Report

Page 2

Page 38

Performance and Quality Assurance
The following Performance Targets were used to measure the performance of internal
audit in delivering the Annual Plan.
Performance Measure

Target

Attained

Completion of Planned Audits

100%

100%

Audits Completed in Time Allocation

100%

100%

Final report issued within 10 working days of receipt
of responses

95%

100%

Compliance with Public Sector Internal Audit
Standards

100%

100%

Ongoing quality assurance work was carried out throughout the year and we continue to
comply with ISO 9001:2015 standards. An independent external review was carried out
of our compliance of the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS) in 2017 and in
particular to meet the requirement of an independent 5 year review, the outcome
confirmed full compliance with all the standards. Our work also complies with the IIA-UK
Professional Standards and relevant guidance issued by the Accounts & Audit Regulations
2015.

Release of Report
The table below sets out the history of this Annual Report.
Date Report issued:

June 2021

Eden District Council
Internal Audit Annual Report

Page 3

Annexes
Annex A
Actual against planned Internal Audit Work 2020/21
Type

Planned
Days

Actual
Days

Assurance Assessment

Comments

Procurement

Assurance

15

15

Reasonable

Final Report Issued

Creditor Payments

Assurance

10

10

Reasonable

Final Report Issued

Payroll

Assurance

10

10

Reasonable

Final Report Issued

Business Rates

Assurance

10

10

Substantial

Final Report Issued

Risk Management Framework

Assurance

5

5

Limited

Final Report Issued

Civica Upgrade Implementation

Assurance

10

10

Reasonable

Final Report Issued

Cyber Security / Fraud Arrangements

Assurance

10

0

N/A

Deferred to 2021/22

Capital Programmes – Parish Footway and Leisure Renewals

Assurance

10

10

Substantial

Final Report Issued.

Cemetery – Income and Contract Charges

Assurance

5

5

Reasonable

Final Report Issued

Legal Case Management / Land Charges

Assurance

10

10

Reasonable

Final Report Issued

Property Management – Landlord Compliance inc. Heart of Cumbria

Assurance

10

0

N/A

Deferred to 2021/22

Leisure Management contract – Pre-Procurement Checks

Assurance

5

0

N/A

Deferred to 2021/22

Recycling / Waste contract – Pre-Procurement Checks

Assurance

5

0

N/A

Deferred to 2021/22

Recycling / Waste Management – Follow Up Review

Assurance

5

0

N/A

Deferred to 2021/22

Follow Up

Follow Up

12

12

N/A

Final Reports Issued

Contingency / Reactive

Contingency

10

0

Not Required

Annual Plan

Management

4

4

Annual Plan Issued

Annual Report & Head of Internal Audit Opinion

Management

4

4

Annual Report Issued

Audit Management

Management

10

10

Total Days

160

115

System

Page 39

Eden District Council
Internal Audit Annual Report

Page 4

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 9
Report No: F26/21
Eden District Council
Accounts and Governance Committee
7 July 2021

Internal Audit - Summary Internal Controls
Assurance Report 2021/22
Portfolio:

None

Report from:

Interim Director of Resources

Wards:

All Wards
OPEN PUBLIC ITEM

1

Purpose

1.1

To present the Summary Internal Controls Assurance Report 2021/22.

2

Recommendation

2.1

Note the report and Summary Internal Controls Assurance Report 2021/22 from TIAA
attached at Appendix 1.

3

Report Details

3.1

The Summary Internal Controls Assurance Report 2021/22 is attached at Appendix 1.
The report sets out the work completed by TIAA since the last report and in
comparison with the Audit Plan.

3.2

The audits completed have reasonable or substantial assurance and there are no
concerns raised at this point. We will seek to address recommendations made from
the reports in line with the agreed actions planned.

4

Policy Framework

4.1

The Council has four corporate priorities which are:


Sustainable;



Healthy, Safe and Secure;



Connected; and



Creative.

4.2

This report meets the Quality Council corporate priority.

5

Consultation

5.1

There has been no consultation with Ward Councillors or Portfolio Holders.

6

Implications

6.1

Financial and Resources

6.1.1 Any decision to reduce or increase resources or alternatively increase income must be
made within the context of the Council’s stated priorities, as set out in its Council Plan
2019-2023 as agreed at Council on 7 November 2019.
6.1.2 There are no financial or resources implications.
1

Page 41

6.2

Legal

6.2

There are no legal implications.

6.3

Human Resources

6.3

There are no human resources implications.

6.4

Statutory Considerations

6.5

Consideration:

Details of any implications
and proposed measures to
address:

Equality and Diversity

There are no implications

Health, Social Environmental and Economic Impact

There are no implications

Crime and Disorder

There are no implications

Children and Safeguarding

There are no implications

Risk Management
Risk

Consequence

Controls Required

Issues raised by Internal
Audit are not appropriately
actioned by management

Weak systems control,
increased risk of theft and
fraud.

Reporting of internal audit
recommendations publicly
to Committee and tracking
implementation of these.

Audit programme slippage

Approved programme not
delivered, resources not
directed as planned and
reported.

Regular reporting on
internal audit progress.

7

Other Options Considered

7.1

No other options have been considered.

8

Reasons for the Decision/Recommendation

8.1

To keep Members updated on the progress with closedown and the external audit
plan.

Background Papers: None
Appendices:

Appendix 1 – Summary Internal Controls Assurance Report
2020/21

Contact Officer:

Paul Sutton, Interim Director of Resources

Page 42

2

Internal Audit
FINAL

Eden District Council
Summary Internal Controls Assurance (SICA) Report

2021/22

Page 43

June 2021

Page 44

Summary Internal Controls Assurance
Introduction
1.

This summary report provides the Accounts and Governance Committee with an update on the emerging Governance, Risk and Internal Control related issues and the progress of
our work at Eden District Council as at 29th June 2021.

Emerging Governance, Risk and Internal Control Related Issues
2.

With the easing of restrictions come the decisions by many businesses as to how they are going to operate in a post-lockdown world. There is a balance between the creativity
and collaboration that arises from being in the same workplace and the benefits that arise from remote working and embracing of technology. Our approach is largely driven by
how our clients are going to operate so we decided to ask their thoughts as part of our annual client survey. The majority of respondents said that they would prefer a mixture of
virtual/remote and face-to-face provision of assurance services in the future. This is largely what we expected, although we recognise that is likely to vary between sectors.

How our clients would like their organisation’s assurance services provided

3.

Whichever model is adopted, we will continue to consider the impact on Governance, Risk and Internal Control of any changes to working practices.

Eden District Council
Summary Internal Controls Assurance (SICA) Report

Page 1

Audits completed since the last SICA report to the Audit Committee
4.

The table below sets out details of audits finalised since the previous meeting of the Audit Committee.
Audits completed since previous SICA report
Key Dates

5.

Number of Recommendations

Review

Evaluation

Draft issued

Responses Received

Final issued

1

2

3

OEM

Business Rates

Substantial

7th April 2021

28th June 2021

28th June 2021

-

-

-

-

ICT Civica Upgrade Implementation

Reasonable

9th June 2021

28th June 2021

29th June 2021

-

3

1

-

Licensing

Substantial

15th June 2021

29th June 2021

29th June 2021

-

-

-

-

Property Management – Landlord
Compliance

Reasonable

9th June 2021

28th June 2021

29th June 2021

-

4

-

-

There are no issues arising from these findings which would require the annual Head of Audit Opinion to be qualified.

Progress against the 2021/22 Annual Plan
6.

Our progress against the Annual Plan for 2021/22 is set out in Appendix B.

Changes to the Annual Plan 2021/22
7.

The Pre-Procurement and Follow Up reviews of the Recycling / Waste Contract have been cancelled as the recommendation made to Councillors is to extend the existing contracts.
It is proposed that the time from these two reviews, along with the contingency time, is utilised to undertake a review of the Covid-19 Grants.

Progress in actioning priority 1 recommendations
8.

We have made no Priority 1 recommendations (i.e. fundamental control issue on which action should be taken immediately) since the previous SICA.

Frauds/Irregularities
9.

We have not been advised of any frauds or irregularities in the period since the last SICA report was issued.

Other Matters
10.

We have issued a number of briefing notes and fraud digests, shown in Appendix D, since the previous SICA report.

Page 45
Eden District Council
Summary Internal Controls Assurance (SICA) Report

Page 2

Page 46
Responsibility/Disclaimer
11.

This report has been prepared solely for management's use and must not be recited or referred to in whole or in part to third parties without our prior written consent. The matters
raised in this report not necessarily a comprehensive statement of all the weaknesses that exist or all the improvements that might be made. No responsibility to any third party
is accepted as the report has not been prepared, and is not intended, for any other purpose. TIAA neither owes nor accepts any duty of care to any other party who may receive
this report and specifically disclaims any liability for loss, damage or expense of whatsoever nature, which is caused by their reliance on our report.
-----

Eden District Council
Summary Internal Controls Assurance (SICA) Report

Page 3

Appendix A

Progress against Annual Plan

Page 47

System

Planned
Quarter

Property Management – Landlord Compliance inc. Heart of Cumbria

1

Complete

Final Report Issued

July 2021

Recycling / Waste Contract – Pre Procurement Checks

1

Cancelled

Review Cancelled – current contracts being extended.

N/A

Licencing

1

Complete

Final Report Issued

July 2021

Local Code of Governance

2

Planned Start Date 20th September
2021

Cyber Security / Fraud Arrangements

2

tbc

Development Control

2

Planned Start Date 6th August 2021

Insurance

3

Planned Start Date 18th October 2021

Debtors

3

tbc

Main Accounting Systems

3

Planned Start Date 3rd November 2021

ICT Service Level Agreement

3

tbc

Leisure Management – Contract Review

3

Planned Start Date 10th December
2021

Income Collection

4

tbc

Council Tax

4

tbc

Recycling / Waste Management – Follow Up Review

4

Cancelled

Review Cancelled – current contracts being extended.

N/A

1-4

On-going

Next report to July Committee

All

Follow Up

Current Status

Comments

Date to Committee

KEY:
To be commenced

Site work commenced

Draft report issued

Final report issued
Eden District Council
Summary Internal Controls Assurance (SICA) Report

Page 4

Page 48

Appendix B

Briefings on developments in Governance, Risk and Control
TIAA produces regular briefing notes to summarise new developments in Governance, Risk and Control which may have an impact on our clients. These are shared with clients and made
available through our Online Client Portal. A summary list of those CBNs and Fraud Alerts issued in the last three months which may be of relevance to Eden District Council is given below.
Copies of any CBNs are available on request from your local TIAA team.
Summary of recent Client Briefing Notes (CBNs)
CBN Ref

CBN - 21015

Subject

Grenfell Inquiry Fire Safety Bill

Status

TIAA Comments

No Action Required
To note awaiting further legislation and potential action.

Action Required Not Urgent
CBN - 21014

National Audit Office – Guidance for Senior
Leaders to improve operational delivery

Chief Executives, Chief Operating Officers and Operational senior management are asked
to note the guidance and to reflect on the principles outlined in respect of the application
within their own organisation.

Action Required Not Urgent
CBN - 21013

Liverpool City Council Best Value Inspection
December 2020 – March 2021

Audit Committees and Boards/Governing Bodies are advised to review practices referred
to in the report, with particular emphasis on the eight points noted within recommendation
three.

Eden District Council
Summary Internal Controls Assurance (SICA) Report

Page 5

Agenda Item 10

Report No: F24/21
Eden District Council
Accounts and Governance Committee
7 July 2021

Work Programme
Report from:

Interim Director of Resources

Wards:

All Wards
OPEN PUBLIC ITEM

1

Purpose

1.1

To set out the work programme for the Accounts and Governance Committee.

2

Recommendation

2.1

It is recommended that the Accounts and Governance Committee approve the
Work Programme as set out at Appendix 1.

3

Report Details

3.1

The proposed work programme for the Accounts and Governance Committee
is set out at Appendix 1.

3.2

The work programme sets out the timeline for the business for the Committee
throughout the municipal year.

4

Policy Framework

4.1

The Council has four corporate priorities which are:





Sustainable;
Healthy, safe and secure;
Connected; and
Creative

4.2

This report meets sustainable and healthy, safe and secure corporate
priorities.

5

Consultation

5.1

No consultation has taken place.

6

Implications

6.1

Financial and Resources

6.1.1 Any decision to reduce or increase resources or alternatively increase income
must be made within the context of the Council’s stated priorities, as set out in
its Council Plan 2019-2023 as agreed at Council on 7 November 2019.
6.1.2 There are no financial or resources implications.
6.2

Legal

6.2.1 There are no legal implications arising from this report.

Page 49

6.3

Human Resources

6.3.1 There are no human resources implications arising from this report.
6.4

6.5

Statutory Considerations
Consideration:

Details of any implications and proposed
measures to address:

Equality and Diversity

None arising from this report.

Health, Social
Environmental and
Economic Impact

None arising from this report.

Crime and Disorder

None arising from this report.

Children and
Safeguarding

None arising from this report.

Risk Management
Risk

Consequence

Controls Required

None

None

None

7

Other Options Considered

7.1

No other options were considered

8

Reasons for the Decision/Recommendation

8.1

The work programme keeps members informed of the business to be
considered at each meeting.

Background Papers:

None

Appendices:

Appendix 1 – Accounts and Governance Committee
Work Programme

Contact Officer:

Paul Sutton, Interim Director of Resources

Page 50

APPENDIX 1

Accounts & Governance Committee – Work Programme
Committee Date

Report Title

7 July 2021
7 July 2021
7 July 2021
7 July 2021

External Audit Update
External Audit – Scope and Additional Works 2020/21
Internal Audit – Annual Report 2020/21
Internal Audit – Summary Internal Controls Assurance
Report 2021/22
Alston Moor Parish Council
Work Programme Update

7 July 2021
7 July 2021
7 September 2021
7 September 2021
7 September 2021
7 September 2021

Public/
Private
Public
Public
Public
Public
Public
Public
Public
Public
Public
Public

7 September 2021

External Audit Update
Internal Audit Update
Annual Fraud Report 2020/21
Annual Review of the Anti-Fraud, Theft, Bribery and
Corruption Strategy and Response Plan
Complaints and Compliments - Ombudsman's Annual
Report and the Council's own Procedure
Work Programme Update

11 November 2021
11 November 2021
11 November 2021
11 November 2021

Statements of Accounts Approval (Provisional)
External Audit – Audit of the Accounts (Provisional)
Internal Audit Update
Work Programme Update

Public
Public
Public
Public

10 February 2022
10 February 2022

External Audit Report
Internal Audit Update & Audit Plan 2022/23 – 2024/25

Public
Public

7 September 2021

Public
Public

Page 51

Page 52

Committee Date

Report Title

10 February 2022

Work Programme Update

Public/
Private
Public

